Guide to the Campbell Family Papers

RG 7



Compiled by Lynn Buckley Aber

1976

409 Prospect Street New Haven, CT 06511 (203) 432-5301 divinity.library@yale.edu http://web.library.yale.edu/divinity/special-collections

Table of Contents

| Collection Overview | . 3 |
|--|-----|
| Requesting Instructions | 3 |
| Administrative Information | . 3 |
| Immediate Source of Acquisition | . 3 |
| Conditions Governing Access | . 4 |
| Preferred Citation | . 4 |
| Processing Information | 4 |
| Related Materials | 4 |
| Biographical / Historical | 4 |
| Scope and Contents | 5 |
| Arrangement | 6 |
| Collection Contents | 7 |
| Series I: Correspondence, 1880s-1972 | 7 |
| Series II: Diaries and notebooks, 1855-1968 | |
| Series III: Writings, 1880-1972 | 23 |
| Series IV: Personal items and memorabilia, 1868-1972 | 25 |
| Biographical material | 25 |
| Thomas P. Campbell | 25 |
| Mary Campbell | 25 |
| George Campbell | 25 |
| Jennie Campbell | 26 |
| Louise Campbell | 26 |
| Miriam Campbell Joyce | |
| Margaret C. Burket | 26 |
| Kenneth Campbell | |
| Dorothy Campbell | 26 |
| David Campbell | |
| Photographs | |
| Oversize materials | |
| Selected Search Terms | 28 |

Collection Overview

| REPOSITORY: | Yale Divinity Library 409 Prospect Street |
|-------------|--|
| | New Haven, CT 06511 |
| | (203) 432-5301 |
| | divinity.library@yale.edu |
| | http://web.library.yale.edu/divinity/special-collections |

CALL NUMBER: RG 7

CREATOR: Campbell family

TITLE: Campbell family papers

DATES: 1855-1972

- **PHYSICAL DESCRIPTION:** 13 linear feet (31 boxes)
 - LANGUAGE: English

SUMMARY: The papers document two generations of Baptist missionary effort in South China. Extensive biographical and autobiographical material gives insight into the personal lives of the Campbells. Conditions in China during World War II are reflected in the letters of Louise and Dorothy Campbell. The Campbells were a family of missionaries in China. George Campbell and his wife, Jennie Wortman Campbell served in South China (1887-1916). Four of their eight children continued missionary efforts. Louise Campbell, principal of the Kwong Yit Girls' School, Meihsien, Guangdong (Kwangtung) Province, worked for 40 years among the Hakka people, as did her sister, Margaret Larue Campbell Burket and Margaret's husband, Everett S. Burket from 1916-1946. Dorothy McBride Campbell served in China from 1926-1944, as did David Miles Campbell from 1926-1942.

ONLINE FINDING AID: To cite or bookmark this finding aid, please use the following link: <u>https://</u><u>hdl.handle.net/10079/fa/divinity.007</u>

Requesting Instructions

To request items from this collection for use on site, please use the request links in the HTML version of this finding aid, available at <u>https://hdl.handle.net/10079/fa/divinity.007</u>.

Key to the container abbreviations used in the PDF finding aid:

b. box

f. folder

Administrative Information

Immediate Source of Acquisition

Gift of the Campbell family

Conditions Governing Access

The materials are open for research.

Preferred Citation

Campbell Family Papers (RG 7), Special Collections, Yale Divinity School Library.

Processing Information

Place names were modernized in the description, with the name originally used in the collection material or in an older version of the finding aid in parenthesis: e.g. "Beijing (Peking)" or "Benin (Dahomey)".

Related Materials

The Campbell Family Papers complement the papers of the Foster Family, <u>Record Group No. 1</u>. Two generations of the families were friends and co-workers in South China.

Biographical / Historical

The marriage of Jennie Wortman and George Campbell marked the beginning of two generations of Baptist missionary effort, first in the United States and later in China. The products of deeply religious families, both had decided independently to become missionaries prior to meeting. In turn, four of the couple's eight children continued the missionary efforts. As detailed biographical information regarding each member of this large family was prepared by Dorothy Campbell and is available in Series IV, folders 3-12, only brief sketches will be given here. (In addition, autobiographical information regarding Jennie W. Campbell and Dorothy M. Campbell is located in Series III, folders 4, 8, 15, 16, and 17.)

Born in 1855 at St. Charles, Illinois, George Campbell spent most of his boyhood and early youth in Delavan, Illinois where his father was a Baptist minister from 1872 to 1885. St. Charles, Illinois is located thirty miles west of Chicago. Delavan, Illinois is thirty miles south of Peoria. Both parents, Thomas Philpot Campbell and Marian Packer Campbell, were educated, transplanted Easterners. (It is interesting to note that Thomas Philpot Campbell offered himself for missionary service, ultimately to be rejected on the grounds of his wife's poor health. She outlived him by twenty years.) George, their only son, graduated from Colgate University, (though some sources indicate Colgate University, Hamilton, NY, where others state Hamilton College), his father's alma mater, and Morgan Park Baptist Theological Seminary. He married Jennie Wortman in 1882, as previously noted.

Jennie Wortman was born in a log cabin in Van Wert, Ohio in 1863. Shortly thereafter, her father, James Wortman, died in the Civil War. Her mother, Mary Larue Wortman, an Ohio native, remarried in 1868 to widower Reuben B. Wood, a Baptist deacon. This merger created a large family: three Wortman children and seven Wood children, in addition to two children of Mary and Reuben Wood. Jennie Wortman received her teaching certificate at the age of fourteen and considered becoming a medical missionary. Two years later she attended Mt. Carroll Seminary for Girls in Illinois, where her schoolmate Elia Campbell introduced her to Elia's brother George.

Following their marriage in 1882, George and Jennie Campbell served as home missionaries in the North West Territory from 1882-1885, and at Tecumsah, Nebraska from 1885-1887. In that year, they left for China with their three small children. Five more children were born between that time and 1901.

The couple served in South China from 1885 to 1900, 1908 to 1912, and from 1914 to 1916. An eight year span, 1900 - 1908, was spent in missionary activity on the West Coast of the United States. Following her husband's death in 1927, Jennie Campbell returned to China where she remained until 1933. She died in 1939 at the home of her son, Kenneth.

Louise Campbell (1883-1968) graduated from Occidental College, Los Angeles, California, in 1928 and served as a China missionary for forty years. Her work centered on the Hakkas, hill people of the region, and as principal of the Kwong Yit Girls' School, Meihaien, Guangdong (Kwangtung) Province.

Miriam Elizabeth Campbell (1885- circa 1972) had some musical education, became a nurse, and served in France during World War I. She married Captain Edward L. Joyce, whom she met in Europe. The couple had two sons, one of whom was killed in World War II. She lived in Toledo, Ohio from 1919 to 1944, at which time she moved to California.

Paul Wortman Campbell (1887-1966) attended the Mt. Herman School, Northfield, Massachusetts, and spent most of his life as a realtor in Eugene, Oregon. He married Lanna Mallet in 1918, and the couple had three sons.

Thomas Packer Campbell (1889-1951) also attended the Mt. Hermon School, Northfield, Massachusetts. He later enrolled at Linfield College, McMinnville, Oregon, and studied Forestry at Oregon Agricultural College, Corvallis. He spent much of his life in the Navy, serving in both World Wars. In 1918 he married Lola Finley, and the couple had three daughters.

Margaret Larue Campbell (1891-1952) graduated from Linfield College in 1913 and married her classmate, Everett S. Burket, the following year. In 1916, the couple sailed for China, where they worked among the Hakkas until their retirement in 1946. They had four children.

Kenneth Malcolm Campbell (1896-circa 1973) attended the China Inland Mission School for Boys, Yantai (Chefoo), North China (where he was a classmate of Thornton Wilder), and Linfield College, and enlisted in the Navy during World War I. He spent much of his life as a teacher and farmer in Washington. His wife, Bodil Weil, was also a teacher. They had four children.

Dorothy McBride Campbell (1898-1972) graduated from Linfield College around 1920, Seattle General Hospital School of Nursing, Class of 1923, and the Bible Institute of Los Angeles. In 1926 she left for China where she served until 1944. At that time she became a nurse in New York City, where she pursued her interests in writing and psychology by taking courses at Columbia University.

David Miles Campbell (1901-circa 1972) attended Linfield College for two years, the Bible Institute of Los Angeles from 1922 to 1934, and graduated from Occidental College in 1926. He served as a China missionary from 1926-1942. From 1942 to 1944 he was interpreter for Chinese troops for General Joseph Stilwell. After the war, he became a contractor in Eugene, Oregon. In 1957, he moved to Southern California where he retired in 1964. He married Bessie Mae Gillis in 1936. The couple, divorced in 1962, had three children.

Scope and Contents

The papers, which span the years 1855 to 1972, chronicle two generations of Baptist missionary effort in South China, and afford glimpses into the generations which preceded this endeavor. It should be noted that the Papers generally tend to document most heavily the lives of George and Jennie Campbell, and their daughters, Louise and Dorothy. Some members of the family are represented by a minimal amount of material.

Correspondence, the first series in the Papers, spans four generations, from George and Jennie Campbell's parents to their grandchildren. However, the bulk of the material was written by members of the two missionary generations.

Each of the eight Campbell children is represented in this series. The letters of Kenneth Campbell to his parents while he attended the China Inland Mission Boy's School at Yantai (Chefoo), North China from 1909 to 1912 are of particular interest. Later letters of Louise and Dorothy Campbell reflect war-time conditions in China Louise, Miriam, Kenneth, Dorothy, and David exchanged letters frequently in their old age.

Diaries and Notebooks, the largest series in the Campbell Family Papers, is composed of the material of five individuals: (1) Thomas Philpot Campbell - one diary, kept from 1855 to 1857, which contains accounts of his travels. (2) George Campbell - many diaries, notebooks, autograph books, etc. These sources chronicle the missionary's life from his youth in Illinois, to China, and old age. The material spans the years from

1874 to 1927. (3) Jennie W. Campbell - several diaries, guest books, birthday books, etc. Her earliest diary, written from 1881 to 1882 while at Mt. Carroll Seminary for Girls in Illinois, may be of particular interest. Her material dates from 1879 to 1939, although there is a gap in diary keeping from 1882 to 1927. (4) Louise Campbell - extensive diary kept from 1895 to 1967 with few interruptions. Notebooks, date books, account books, etc. comprise the remainder of her material. (5) Dorothy Campbell - extensive personal diaries and notebooks recorded from 1908 to 1966, with few exceptions.

Writings, the third series, is also the smallest. Autobiographical accounts of Jennie and Dorothy Campbell are of interest. The bulk of the material in this series was penned by Dorothy Campbell in conjunction with her continuing education in psychology and writing.

All the material is in manuscript form, with the exception of two copies of a 1957 Church publication which contains writings by both Miriam C. Joyce and David Campbell.

Personal Items and Memorabilia, the final series, contains a variety of material. Extensive biographical material, including the *Genealogy of the Descendents of George and Jennie Campbell* prepared by David Campbell, is located at the beginning of the series.

The material of George Campbell includes several folders pertaining to the genealogy of the Campbell family and development of the milk goat industry--both of his retirement hobbies.

A small amount of printed material is housed within this section. A 1929 Chinese piracy incident, which directly involved Jennie, Louise, and Dorothy Campbell, made national headlines and is located with other over-sized material.

A separate section of Photographs contains material dating from the Civil War to the 1970s. Photographs of George and Jennie Campbell prior to their courtship and scenes of China are of special interest. Life at the China Inland Mission School in Yantai (Chefoo), North China between 1909 and 1912 is also depicted. Thornton Wilder, noted author and playwright, is in one of the group photos.

Arrangement

I. Correspondence, 1800s-1972 II. Diaries and Notebooks, 1855-1968 III. Writings, 1880-1972 IV. Personal Items and Memorabilia, 1868-1972

Collection Contents Series I: Correspondence, 1880s-1972

Material in this series is arranged chronologically by generation. The letters of George Campbell have also been given a topical arrangement. The correspondence of the eight Campbell children is also filed chronologically; the letters of Louise, the eldest child, appear first, while those of David, the youngest child, are last. Letters written by their spouses and children immediately follow. Material written by the Campbells or their relatives is filed according to writer. Letters to the Campbells from various sources outside the family are inter-filed chronologically with the letters which they wrote. (For example, Louise Campbell's file contains the letters which she wrote, and those which she received from people outside her family.)

| | Mary Campbell | |
|---------------------------|---|--------------------------------|
| b. 1, f. 10 | Mary Campbell to unnamed friends | 1916, undated |
| | Jennie Campbell | |
| b. 1, f. 1 | Marian P. Campbell to George and Jennie Campbell | 1902, 1905, 1907 |
| b. 1, f. 2 | Mary W. Wood to Jennie W. Campbell, family | 1899-1900, 1903, 1904 |
| b. 1, f. 3 | Mary W. Wood to Jennie W. Campbell, family | 1905-1906 |
| b. 1, f. 4 | Mary W. Wood to Jennie W. Campbell, family; including note from "Carey" (cousin?) | 1907, 1909 |
| b. 1, f. 5 | Mary W. Wood to Jennie W. Campbell, family | 1910 |
| b. 1, f. 6 | Mary W. Wood to Jennie W. Campbell, family, Margaret | 1911-1913 |
| b. 1, f. 7 | Mary W. Wood to Jennie W. Campbell, family; note from Lillian Whitman to Jennie W. Campbell enclosed | 1914-1915 |
| b. 1 , f. 8 | Mary W. Wood to Jennie W. Campbell, family, Dorothy; incl. letter from nephew Lester | 1916-1917 |
| b. 1 , f. 9 | Elia Campbell Whitman to Paul Campbell, Melvin L. Wortman to George and Jennie Campbell | 1893, 1908 |
| b. 2, f. 33 | Jennie Campbell - Copy book of letters | 1890 |
| b. 2, f. 34 | Jennie Campbell - extracts, notes and typed copies from her copy book | 1890 |
| b. 2, f. 35 | Jennie Campbell to family | 1896-1897, 1902, 1911, 1919 |
| | See also: Kenneth Campbell, Series I, Folder 155 | |
| b. 2, f. 36 | Jennie Campbell to family | circa 1922, 1924 |
| b. 2, f. 37 | Jennie Campbell to family | 1925, 1927 |
| b. 2, f. 38 | Jennie Campbell to family | 1928, 1929 |
| b. 2, f. 39 | Jennie Campbell to family | 1930-1932 |

Jennie Campbell (continued)

| b. 2, f. 40 | Jennie Campbell to family | 1934-1937 |
|-------------|--|------------------------|
| b. 2, f. 41 | Jennie Campbell to family | 1938-1939, undated |
| b. 2, f. 42 | Jennie Campbell from Callie Wortman (sister) | circa 1902-1905 |
| b. 2, f. 42 | Jennie Campbell to E. Powell of the China Inland Mission School re: dog bite inflicted on Kenneth Campbell | 1912 |
| b. 2, f. 43 | Jennie Campbell re: deaths of George Campbell, and "Dad Wortman" | 1927, 1938 |
| b. 2, f. 44 | M.E. Adkins to "Co-Workers"probably George and/or Jennie Campbell - re: Kansas City Convention | 1914 |
| Geo | orge Campbell | |
| b. 1, f. 11 | George Campbell to family | 1901, 1909 |
| b. 1, f. 12 | George Campbell to family | 1911 January- May |
| b. 1, f. 13 | George Campbell to family | 1911 June- December |
| b. 1, f. 14 | George Campbell to family | 1912-1913 |
| b. 1, f. 15 | George Campbell to family, Elia | 1914-1916, 1919 |
| b. 1, f. 16 | George Campbell to family | 1921-1926 |
| b. 1, f. 17 | George Campbell to family | 1927, undated |
| b. 1, f. 18 | George Campbell - report letter | 1911 |
| b. 1, f. 19 | George Campbell re: Agriculture from: University of Puerto Rico | 1914 |
| b. 1, f. 20 | George Campbell to Postmaster at Shantou (Swatow), China | circa 1880s, 1912 |
| b. 1, f. 20 | George Campbell to Editor of <i>The Standard</i> (Chicago); Dr. Foster; Pastors of the Baptist Churches of the Northwest | circa 1914, 1927 |
| b. 1, f. 21 | George Campbell to/from U.S. Department of Agriculture | 1909, 1910 |
| b. 1, f. 22 | George Campbell to/from U.S. Department of Agriculture | 1911-1914 |
| b. 1, f. 23 | George Campbell to/from U.S. Department of Agriculture | 1915 |
| b. 1, f. 24 | George Campbell re: Genealogy | 1913-1914 |
| b. 1, f. 25 | George Campbell re: Genealogy to/from: Eugenics Record Office | 1914-1915 |
| b. 1, f. 26 | George Campbell re: Genealogy | 1915, 1917 |
| b. 1, f. 27 | George Campbell re: Genealogy | 1922-1924 May |
| b. 1, f. 28 | George Campbell re: Genealogy | 1924 July- October |

George Campbell (continued)

| b. 1, f. 29 | George Campbell re: Genealogy | 1925 |
|-------------|---|---------------------------|
| b. 1, f. 30 | George Campbell re: Genealogy | undated |
| b. 1, f. 31 | George Campbell re: death of Mary Campbell | 1919 |
| b. 1, f. 32 | George Campbell from "All Hakka Convention" re: death of Elia Campbell Whitman | 1926 |
| Lou | ise Campbell | |
| b. 3, f. 45 | Louise Campbell | 1910-1917 |
| b. 3, f. 46 | Louise Campbell | 1920-1924 |
| b. 3, f. 47 | Louise Campbell | 1924-1927 |
| b. 3, f. 48 | Louise Campbell | 1928-1929 |
| b. 3, f. 49 | Louise Campbell | 1930, 1933, 1935, 1936 |
| b. 3, f. 50 | Louise Campbell | 1937 |
| b. 3, f. 51 | Louise Campbell | 1938-1939 |
| b. 3, f. 53 | Louise Campbell | 1941 |
| b. 3, f. 54 | Louise Campbell | 1943 |
| b. 3, f. 55 | Louise Campbell | 1944 |
| b. 3, f. 56 | Louise Campbell | 1945 January- May |
| b. 3, f. 57 | Louise Campbell | 1945 June- December |
| b. 3, f. 58 | Louise Campbell | 1946-1947 |
| b. 3, f. 59 | Louise Campbell | 1948 |
| b. 4, f. 60 | Louise Campbell | 1949-1950 |
| b. 4, f. 61 | Louise Campbell | 1951 January- July |
| b. 4, f. 62 | Louise Campbell | 1951 August- December |
| b. 4, f. 63 | Louise Campbell | 1952 January- March |
| b. 4, f. 64 | Louise Campbell | 1952 April-May |
| b. 4, f. 65 | Louise Campbell | 1952 June |
| b. 4, f. 66 | Louise Campbell | 1952 July- August |

Louise Campbell (continued)

| b. 4, f. 67 | Louise Campbell | 1952 September- December |
|--|---|---|
| b. 4, f. 68 | Louise Campbell | 1953 January- March |
| b. 4, f. 69 | Louise Campbell | 1953 April-June |
| b. 4, f. 70 | Louise Campbell | 1953 July- September |
| b. 4, f. 71 | Louise Campbell | 1954 January- May |
| b. 4, f. 72 | Louise Campbell | 1954 August- December |
| b. 4, f. 73 | Louise Campbell | 1955 January- March |
| b. 4, f. 74 | Louise Campbell | 1955 May- August |
| b. 4, f. 75 | Louise Campbell | 1955 September- December, no month |
| b. 4, f. 76 | Louise Campbell | 1956 January- April |
| | | |
| b. 4, f. 77 | Louise Campbell | 1956 May- September |
| b. 4, f. 77 b. 4, f. 78 | Louise Campbell Louise Campbell | |
| | | September 1956 October- |
| b. 4, f. 78 | Louise Campbell | September 1956 October- December 1958 July- |
| b. 4, f. 78 b. 4, f. 79 | Louise Campbell Louise Campbell | September 1956 October- December 1958 July- September 1958 October- |
| b. 4, f. 78 b. 4, f. 79 b. 4, f. 80 | Louise Campbell Louise Campbell Louise Campbell | September 1956 October- December 1958 July- September 1958 October- December 1959 January- |
| b. 4, f. 78 b. 4, f. 79 b. 4, f. 80 b. 4, f. 81 | Louise Campbell Louise Campbell Louise Campbell Louise Campbell | September 1956 October- December 1958 July- September 1958 October- December 1959 January- May 1959 June- |
| b. 4, f. 78 b. 4, f. 79 b. 4, f. 80 b. 4, f. 81 b. 4, f. 82 | Louise Campbell Louise Campbell Louise Campbell Louise Campbell Louise Campbell | September 1956 October- December 1958 July- September 1958 October- December 1959 January- May 1959 June- December 1960 January- |
| b. 4, f. 78 b. 4, f. 79 b. 4, f. 80 b. 4, f. 81 b. 4, f. 82 b. 4, f. 83 | Louise Campbell Louise Campbell Louise Campbell Louise Campbell Louise Campbell Louise Campbell | September 1956 October- December 1958 July- September 1958 October- December 1959 January- May 1959 June- December 1960 January- March 1960 April- |

Louise Campbell (continued)

| b. 5, f. 87 | Louise Campbell | 1961 May-July |
|--------------|--|--|
| b. 5, f. 88 | Louise Campbell | 1961 August- November, no month |
| b. 5, f. 89 | Louise Campbell | 1962 |
| b. 5, f. 90 | Louise Campbell | 1963 January- May |
| b. 5, f. 91 | Louise Campbell | 1963 June- December |
| b. 5, f. 92 | Louise Campbell | 1964, no month |
| b. 5, f. 93 | Louise Campbell | 1965 March- August |
| b. 5, f. 94 | Louise Campbell | 1965 October- December, no month |
| b. 5, f. 95 | Louise Campbell | 1966 January- April |
| b. 5, f. 96 | Louise Campbell | 1966 May-July |
| b. 5, f. 97 | Louise Campbell | 1966 September- November, no month |
| b. 5, f. 98 | Louise Campbell | 1967 January- April |
| b. 5, f. 99 | Louise Campbell | 1967 May- September |
| b. 5, f. 100 | Louise Campbell | 1967 October- December, no month |
| b. 5, f. 101 | Louise Campbell | 1968, undated |
| b. 5, f. 102 | Louise Campbell - postcards to Dorothy Campbell | 1951-1967, undated |
| b. 5, f. 103 | Louise Campbell to/from: Maurice Jeanson, U.S. Department of Agriculture re: seeds | 1917, 1924, 1925 |
| b. 5, f. 104 | Letters of Condolence re: Louise Campbell, A-C | 1968 |
| b. 5, f. 105 | Letters of Condolence re: Louise Campbell, D-H | 1968 |
| b. 5, f. 106 | Letters of Condolence re: Louise Campbell, J-Z | 1968 |
| Mir | am Camphell Joyce | |

Miriam Campbell Joyce

Miriam Campbell Joyce (continued)

| b. 6, f. 107 | Miriam Campbell Joyce re: death of her mother; telegram re: death of her father | 1927, 1939 |
|------------------|---|---|
| b. 6, f. 108 | Miriam Campbell Joyce | 1948-1952 |
| b. 6, f. 109 | Miriam Campbell Joyce | 1953 January- July |
| b. 6, f. 110 | Miriam Campbell Joyce | 1953? |
| b. 6, f. 111 | Miriam Campbell Joyce | 1955? |
| b. 6, f. 112 | Miriam Campbell Joyce | 1959 |
| b. 6, f. 113 | Miriam Campbell Joyce | 1960 |
| b. 6, f. 114 | Miriam Campbell Joyce | 1961 |
| b. 6, f. 115 | Miriam Campbell Joyce | 1962 |
| b. 6, f. 116 | Miriam Campbell Joyce | 1963 January- February |
| b. 6, f. 117 | Miriam Campbell Joyce | 1963 March- April |
| b. 6, f. 118 | Miriam Campbell Joyce | 1963 May |
| b. 6, f. 119 | Miriam Campbell Joyce | 1964, 1965 |
| b. 6, f. 120-121 | Miriam Campbell Joyce | circa 1964-1972 |
| b. 6, f. 122 | James C. Joyce (son) to Miriam Campbell Joyce, Dorothy Campbell, "Kay" | 1934, 1958, 1970 |
| | Paul Campbell | |
| b. 7, f. 123 | Paul Campbell | 1908, 1910-1911, 1913 |
| b. 7, f. 124 | Paul Campbell | 1925, 1927, 1933, 1935, 1942, 1952, 1955-1956, 1964 |
| b. 7, f. 125 | Paul Campbell: Letter re: Family Reunion held at Eugene, Oregon | 1935 |
| | Lenna M. Campbell | |
| b. 7, f. 126 | Lenna M. Campbell (Mrs. Paul)-including "round-robin" family letter, Philip Campbell (son) | 1933-1938, circa 1955, 1958-1959, 1964 |
| b. 7, f. 127 | Lenna M. Campbell (Mrs. Paul) | undated |
| | Thomas Campbell | |
| b. 7, f. 128 | Thomas Campbell | 1920, 1922, 1924, 1945, 1948-1949 |

Thomas Campbell (continued)

| b. 7, f. 129 | Thomas Campbell | 1951-1952, undated |
|--------------|---|--------------------------------|
| | Lola F. Campbell | |
| b. 7, f. 130 | Lola F. Campbell (Mrs. Thomas), with excerpts from letters of Louise C. Turcotte, Dorothy Campbell, Louise Campbell, Lola F. Campbell (See also: Biography of T.P. Campbell in PIM) | 1927, circa 1940s, 1952 |
| | Louise Campbell Turcotte | |
| b. 7, f. 131 | Louise Campbell Turcotte (daughter) and children | 1952, 1966, 1969 |
| | Jean Campbell Conley | |
| b. 7, f. 132 | Jean Campbell Conley (daughter) | 1969-1970 |
| | Margaret Campbell Burket | |
| b. 7, f. 133 | Margaret Campbell Burket | 1910, 1917-1919 |
| b. 7, f. 134 | Margaret Campbell Burket | 1925, 1929 |
| b. 7, f. 135 | Margaret Campbell Burket | 1931, 1935, 1939, 1945 |
| b. 7, f. 136 | Margaret Campbell Burket | 1951 |
| b. 7, f. 138 | Telegram re: death of Margaret Campbell Burket, letters of George and Stanley Burket (sons) | 1952, 1955-1959 |
| | Everett S. Burket | |
| b. 7, f. 137 | Everett S. Burket | 1927, 1928, 1944 |
| | Kenneth Campbell | |
| b. 8, f. 139 | Kenneth Campbell | 1909 February- May |
| b. 8, f. 140 | Kenneth Campbell | 1909 June- August |
| b. 8, f. 141 | Kenneth Campbell | 1909 September- November |
| b. 8, f. 142 | Kenneth Campbell | 1910 February- April |
| b. 8, f. 143 | Kenneth Campbell | 1910 May-June |
| b. 8, f. 144 | Kenneth Campbell | 1910 July- August |
| b. 8, f. 145 | Kenneth Campbell | 1910 September |
| b. 8, f. 146 | Kenneth Campbell | 1910 October- November |

Kenneth Campbell (continued)

| b. 8, f. 147 | Kenneth Campbell | 1911 January, April |
|--------------|---|----------------------------|
| b. 8, f. 148 | Kenneth Campbell | 1911 May-June |
| b. 8, f. 149 | Kenneth Campbell | 1911 July-August |
| b. 8, f. 150 | Kenneth Campbell | 1911 September- October |
| b. 8, f. 151 | Kenneth Campbell | 1911 November- December |
| b. 8, f. 152 | Kenneth Campbell | 1912 January- March |
| b. 8, f. 153 | Kenneth Campbell | 1912 April-May |
| b. 8, f. 154 | Kenneth Campbell | 1912 June-July |
| b. 8, f. 155 | Kenneth Campbell | 1912 August- September |
| b. 8, f. 156 | Kenneth Campbell: Lists of boys, adults, and subjects mentioned in his letters to home from | 1909-1912, 1972 |
| Ke | nneth and Bodil Campbell | |
| b. 8, f. 157 | Kenneth and Bodil Campbell, including note by Jennie Campbell | 1923-1938 |
| b. 8, f. 158 | Kenneth and Bodil Campbell | 1951-1960 |
| b. 8, f. 159 | Kenneth and Bodil Campbell | 1964 January- March |
| b. 8, f. 160 | Kenneth and Bodil Campbell | 1964 April- December |
| b. 8, f. 161 | Kenneth and Bodil Campbell | 1965 January- May |
| b. 8, f. 162 | Kenneth and Bodil Campbell | 1965 July- December |
| b. 8, f. 163 | Kenneth and Bodil Campbell | 1966 |
| b. 8, f. 164 | Kenneth and Bodil Campbell | 1967-1968 |
| b. 8, f. 165 | Kenneth and Bodil Campbell | 1969 |
| b. 8, f. 166 | Kenneth and Bodil Campbell | 1970, 1972 |
| Do | rothy Campbell | |
| b. 9, f. 167 | Dorothy Campbell | 1924 |
| b. 9, f. 168 | Dorothy Campbell | 1925 February- June |

| b. 9 , f. 169 | Dorothy Campbell | 1925 July- August |
|-----------------------------|--|--|
| b. 9 , f. 170 | Dorothy Campbell | 1925 September- November |
| b. 9 , f. 171 | Dorothy Campbell | 1926 February- June |
| b. 9 , f. 172 | Dorothy Campbell | 1926 July- November |
| b. 9 , f. 173 | Dorothy Campbell | 1927 |
| b. 9 , f. 174 | Dorothy Campbell | 1928 |
| b. 9 , f. 175 | Dorothy Campbell | circa 1926-1929 |
| b. 9 , f. 176 | Dorothy Campbell | 1931-1932 |
| b. 9 , f. 177 | Dorothy Campbell | circa 1933 |
| b. 9 , f. 178 | Dorothy Campbell | 1931 |
| b. 9, f. 179 | Dorothy Campbell | 1935 |
| b. 9, f. 180 | Dorothy Campbell | 1936 January- July |
| b. 9 , f. 181 | Dorothy Campbell | 1936 November- December |
| b. 9, f. 182 | Dorothy Campbell | 1937 |
| b. 9, f. 183 | Dorothy Campbell | 1938-1939 |
| b. 3, f. 52 | Dorothy Campbell from Edith Traver with two articles enclosed | circa 1940s |
| b. 9, f. 184 | Dorothy Campbell - including letter from Chi Ki-Kwong re: 1929 attack by pirates | 1940-1943 |
| b. 9, f. 185 | Dorothy Campbell | 1944 |
| b. 10, f. 186 | Dorothy Campbell | 1945 February- May |
| b. 10, f. 187 | Dorothy Campbell | 1945 July- August |
| b. 10, f. 188 | Dorothy Campbell | 1945 September- November 9 |
| b. 10, f. 189 | Dorothy Campbell | 1945 November 18-December, circa 1945-1946 |
| b. 10, f. 190 | Dorothy Campbell | 1946 January- May |

| b. 10, f. 191 | Dorothy Campbell | 1946 August- September |
|------------------------------|--|----------------------------|
| b. 10, f. 192 | Dorothy Campbell | 1946 October- November |
| b. 10, f. 193 | Dorothy Campbell | 1946 December, no month |
| b. 10 , f. 194 | Dorothy Campbell | 1947 January- February |
| b. 10, f. 195 | Dorothy Campbell | 1947 March- December |
| b. 10, f. 196 | Dorothy Campbell | 1948, 1949 |
| b. 10, f. 197 | Dorothy Campbell | 1950, 1951 |
| b. 10 , f. 198 | Dorothy Campbell | 1952, 1953 |
| b. 10, f. 199 | Dorothy Campbell | 1954, 1955, 1954-1958 |
| b. 10, f. 200 | Dorothy Campbell | 1956 |
| b. 10, f. 201 | Dorothy Campbell | 1957-1958 |
| b. 10, f. 202 | Dorothy Campbell | 1963, 1964 |
| b. 10, f. 203 | Dorothy Campbell: Material re: War Claims for losses in China | 1964 |
| b. 10, f. 204 | Dorothy Campbell | 1966-1969 |
| b. 10, f. 205 | Dorothy Campbell | 1970, 1971 |
| b. 10, f. 206 | Dorothy Campbell: Letter from Marion Reith to her parentsdescribing Shantou (Swatow), Kakchieh, and Jieyang (Kityang); letter from Dr. Marguerite Everham to "girls" | 1936, circa 1938, 1944 |
| Dav | id Campbell | |
| b. 11, f. 207 | David Campbell | 1929, 1937, 1942 |
| b. 11 , f. 208 | David Campbell | circa 1951-1956 |
| b. 11, f. 209 | David Campbell | 1957-1961 |
| b. 11, f. 210 | David Campbell | 1962-1963 |
| b. 11, f. 211 | David Campbell | 1964-1966 |
| b. 11, f. 212 | David Campbell | 1967 |
| b. 11, f. 213 | David Campbell | 1968 |
| b. 11, f. 214 | David Campbell | 1969 January- April |

David Campbell (continued)

| b. 11, f. 215 | David Campbell | 1969 May- August |
|---------------|---|-----------------------------|
| b. 11, f. 216 | David Campbell | 1969 September- December |
| b. 11, f. 217 | David Campbell | 1970 January- July |
| b. 11, f. 218 | David Campbell fragment | 1970 August-1971 |
| | David Campbell, Jr. | |
| b. 11, f. 219 | David Campbell, Jr. to Dorothy Campbell | 1969 |
| | Bessie G. Campbell | |
| b. 11, f. 220 | Bessie G. Campbell (Mrs. David) | 1935-circa 1956 |

Series II: Diaries and notebooks, 1855-1968

Material in this series is arranged chronologically. In the case of the Louise Campbell material, diaries appear first, followed by notebooks, then account books, etc. Diaries and Notebooks occasionally overlap in form, as well as in dates.

| b.12, f.1Diay1874b.12, f.2Diay1877b.12, f.3Autograph Book1879b.12, f.4Manual of Church History - used at Baptist Theological Seminary, Mog1880b.12, f.4Diay excerpts (typed) - including courtship letter to Jennie Wortmanni1881b.12, f.5Diay1881b.12, f.5Diay1892b.12, f.7"Observations with Transit"1894b.13, f.8Diay (begins at back)1902b.13, f.8Diay (begins at back)1902b.13, f.10Account Book and Notes1912b.13, f.12Netbook/Diary1913b.13, f.15Netbook/Diary1914b.13, f.15Netbook1914b.14, f.16Notebook1914b.14, f.16Notebook1914b.14, f.16Netbook1914b.14, f.17Diay1924b.14, f.16Netbook1914b.14, f.17Diay1924b.14, f.16Netbook1924b.14, f.17Diay1924b.14, f.16Netbook1924b.14, f.16Netbook1924b.14, f.17Diay1924b.14, f.16Netbook1924b.14, f.17Diay1924b.14, f.16Netbook1924b.14, f.16Netbook1924b.14, f.16Netbook1924b.14, f.16Diay1924b.14, f.16Diay1924b.14, f.16Diay1924 | | George Campbell | |
|--|------------------------------|---|-----------------|
| b.12,f.3Autograph Book1879-1894b.12,f.4AManual of Church History - used at Baptist Theological Seminary, Moral ark, Illinois, with notes in Chinese1880b.12,f.5Diary excerpts (typed) including courtship letter to Jennie Wortman1882-1883b.12,f.6Diary1889b.12,f.7"Observations with Transit"1896-1890b.13,f.8Diary (begins at back)1902,1910-1911b.13,f.9Diary (begins at back)1902,1910-1911b.13,f.10Account Book and Notes1912b.13,f.11Diary1912-1916b.13,f.12Notebook/Diary1914b.13,f.13Notebook/Diary1914b.13,f.14Notebook1914b.13,f.15Notebook1914b.14,f.16Notebook1914b.14,f.17Diary1924-1925b.14,f.18Notebook re: Genealogy1924-1925b.14,f.19Notes (loose-leaf) for classes, talks, etc.1924-1927b.14,f.20Diary1924-1927b.14,f.21Diary1924-1927b.14,f.22Diary1924-1927b.14,f.23Notes (loose-leaf) for classes, talks, etc.1924-1927b.14,f.24Notes (loose-leaf) for classes, talks, etc.1924-1927b.15,f.22Diary1855-1857b.15,f.23Autograph Book1857-1857 | b. 12, f. 1 | Diary | 1874 |
| b.12, f. 4A Manual of Church History - used at Baptist Theological Seminary, Morga1880b.12, f. 5Diary excerpts (typed) including courtship letter to Jennie Wortman1882-1883b.12, f. 6Diary1886b.12, f. 7"Observations with Transit"1896-1897b.13, f. 8Diary (begins at back)1896-1898b.13, f. 9Diary (begins at back)1902,1910-1911b.13, f. 10Account Book and Notes1912b.13, f. 11Diary1912-1916b.13, f. 12Notebook/Diary1913b.13, f. 13Notebook/Diary1914b.13, f. 14Notebook1914b.13, f. 15Notebook1914b.13, f. 16Notebook1914b.13, f. 17Diary1924-1925b.14, f. 16Notebook1914b.14, f. 17Diary1924-1925b.14, f. 18Notebook1924-1925b.14, f. 19Notebook1924-1925b.14, f. 19Notebook1924-1925b.14, f. 20Notebook1924-1925b.14, f. 20Notebook re: Genealogycirca 1925b.14, f. 21Notes (locse-leaf) for classes, talks, etc.1924-1927b.15, f. 22Diary1855-1857Jennie W.CampbellJennie W.Campbell | b. 12, f. 2 | Diary | 1877-1878 |
| b. 12, f. 5 Diary excerpts (typed) including courtship letter to Jennie Wortman 1882-1883 b. 12, f. 6 Diary 1884 b. 12, f. 7 "Observations with Transit" 1896-1897 b. 13, f. 8 Diary (begins at back) 1896-1898 b. 13, f. 9 Diary (begins at back) 1902, 1910-1911 b. 13, f. 10 Account Book and Notes 1912 b. 13, f. 11 Diary 1912-1916 b. 13, f. 12 Notebook/Diary 1913 b. 13, f. 13 Notebook/Diary 1914 b. 13, f. 14 Notebook 1914 b. 13, f. 15 Notebook 1914 b. 13, f. 14 Notebook 1914 b. 13, f. 15 Notebook 1914 b. 14, f. 16 Notebook 1914 b. 14, f. 16 Notebook 1914 b. 14, f. 17 Diary 1924-1925 b. 14, f. 18 Notebook re: Genealogy circa 1925 b. 14, f. 19 Notebook re: Genealogy circa 1925 b. 14, f. 20 Noteook re: Genealogy circa 1925 </td <td>b. 12, f. 3</td> <td>Autograph Book</td> <td>1879-1894</td> | b. 12, f. 3 | Autograph Book | 1879-1894 |
| b. 12, f. 6 Diary 1888 b. 12, f. 7 "Observations with Transit" 1896-1897 b. 13, f. 8 Diary (begins at back) 1896-1898 b. 13, f. 9 Diary (begins at back) 1902, 1910-1911 b. 13, f. 10 Account Book and Notes 1912 b. 13, f. 10 Account Book and Notes 1912 b. 13, f. 11 Diary 1912-1916 b. 13, f. 12 Notebook/Diary 1913 b. 13, f. 13 Notebook circa 1913-1914 b. 13, f. 14 Notebook 1914 b. 13, f. 15 Notebook 1914 b. 13, f. 14 Notebook 1914 b. 13, f. 15 Notebook 1914 b. 14, f. 16 Notebook 1914 b. 14, f. 17 Diary 1924-1925 b. 14, f. 18 Notebook re: Genealogy circa 1925 b. 14, f. 20 Notebook re: Genealogy circa 1925 b. 14, f. 21 Notes (loose-leaf) for classes, talks, etc. 1924-1927 b. 15, f. 22 Diary 1855-1857 | b. 12, f. 4 | | 1880 |
| b.12, f.7 "Observations with Transit" 1896-1897 b.13, f.8 Diary (begins at back) 1896-1898 b.13, f.9 Diary (begins at back) 1902, 1910-1911 b.13, f.10 Account Book and Notes 1912 b.13, f.10 Account Book and Notes 1912 b.13, f.11 Diary 1912-1916 b.13, f.12 Notebook/Diary 1913 b.13, f.13 Notebook circa 1913-1914 b.13, f.14 Notebook 1914 b.13, f.15 Notebook 1914 b.14, f.16 Notebook 1914 b.14, f.16 Notebook 1914 b.14, f.17 Diary 1914 b.14, f.18 Notebook re: Genealogy circa 1925 b.14, f.19 Notebook re: Genealogy circa 1925 b.14, f.21 Notes (loose-leaf) for classes, talks, etc. 1924-1927 b.15, f.22 Diary 1855-1857 Jennie W. Campbell Jennie W. Campbell Jennie W. Campbell | b. 12, f. 5 | Diary excerpts (typed) including courtship letter to Jennie Wortman | 1882-1883 |
| b. 13, f. 8 Diary (begins at back) 1896-1898 b. 13, f. 9 Diary (begins at back) 1902, 1910-1911 b. 13, f. 10 Account Book and Notes 1912 b. 13, f. 10 Account Book and Notes 1912 b. 13, f. 11 Diary 1912 b. 13, f. 12 Notebook/Diary 1913 b. 13, f. 13 Notebook circa 1913-1914 b. 13, f. 14 Notebook 1914 b. 13, f. 15 Notebook 1914 b. 14, f. 16 Notebook 1914 b. 14, f. 16 Notebook 1914 b. 14, f. 16 Notebook 1914 b. 14, f. 17 Diary 1914 b. 14, f. 18 Notebook 1914 b. 14, f. 19 Notebook 1914 b. 14, f. 20 Notebook re: Genealogy circa 1925 b. 14, f. 21 Notes (loose-leaf) for classes, talks, etc. 1924-1927 b. 14, f. 22 Diary 1855-1857 b. 15, f. 23 Diary 1855-1857 | b. 12, f. 6 | Diary | 1888 |
| b.13, f. 9Diary (begins at back)1902, 1910-1911b.13, f. 10Account Book and Notes1912b.13, f. 10Diary1912-1916b.13, f. 11Diary1913b.13, f. 12Notebook/Diary1913b.13, f. 13Notebookcirca 1913-1914b.13, f. 14Notebook1914b.13, f. 15Notebook1914b.14, f. 16Notebook1914b.14, f. 17Diary1924-1925b.14, f. 18Notebook1914b.14, f. 19Notebook1914b.14, f. 19Notebook1924b.14, f. 19Notebook1924b.14, f. 19Notebook re: Genealogycirca 1925b.14, f. 20Notes (loose-leaf) for classes, talks, etc.1924-1927b.15, f. 22Diary1855-1857Jenni-W. CampbellLit, f. 23Autograph BookJenni-W. Campbell | b. 12, f. 7 | "Observations with Transit" | 1896-1897 |
| h. 13, f. 10Account Book and Notes1912b. 13, f. 11Diary1913b. 13, f. 12Notebook/Diary1913b. 13, f. 13Notebookcirca 1913-1914b. 13, f. 14Notebook1914b. 13, f. 15Notebook1914b. 14, f. 16Notebook1914b. 14, f. 17Diary1924-1925b. 14, f. 18Notebook1914b. 14, f. 19Notebook1924b. 14, f. 20Notebook1924b. 14, f. 20Notebook1924b. 14, f. 21Notebook1924b. 15, f. 22Diary1855Jenni-W. Campbell1855b. 15, f. 23Autograph Book1879 | b. 13, f. 8 | Diary (begins at back) | 1896-1898 |
| b.13, f.11 Diary 1912-1916 b.13, f.12 Notebook/Diary 1913 b.13, f.13 Notebook circa 1913-1914 b.13, f.14 Notebook 1914 b.13, f.15 Notebook 1914 b.13, f.14 Notebook 1914 b.13, f.15 Notebook 1914 b.14, f.16 Notebook 1914 b.14, f.17 Diary 1924-1925 b.14, f.18 Notebook 1914 b.14, f.19 Notebook 1924 b.14, f.19 Notebook re: Genealogy circa 1925 b.14, f.20 Notes (loose-leaf) for classes, talks, etc. 1924-1927 b.14, f.21 Notes (loose-leaf) for classes, talks, etc. 1924-1927 b.15, f.22 Diary 1855-1857 b.15, f.23 Autograph Book 1879 | b. 13, f. 9 | Diary (begins at back) | 1902, 1910-1911 |
| b.13, f.12 Notebook/Diary 1913 b.13, f.13 Notebook circa 1913-1914 b.13, f.14 Notebook 1914 b.13, f.15 Notebook 1914 b.13, f.16 Notebook 1914 b.13, f.15 Notebook 1914 b.14, f.16 Notebook 1914 b.14, f.17 Diary 1924-1925 b.14, f.18 Notebook 1914 b.14, f.19 Notebook 1914 b.14, f.19 Notebook 1924 b.14, f.20 Notebook re: Genealogy circa 1925 b.14, f.21 Notes (loose-leaf) for classes, talks, etc. 1924-1927 b.14, f.21 Notes (loose-leaf) for classes, talks, etc. 1924-1927 b.15, f.22 Diary 1855-1857 b.15, f.23 Autograph Book 1879 | b. 13, f. 10 | Account Book and Notes | 1912 |
| b.13, f.13Notebookcirca 1913-1914b.13, f.14Notebook1914b.13, f.15Notebook1914b.14, f.16Notebook1914b.14, f.17Diary1924-1925b.14, f.18Notebook1914b.14, f.19Notebook1914b.14, f.19Notebook1924b.14, f.20Notebook re: Genealogycirca 1925b.14, f.21Notes (loose-leaf) for classes, talks, etc.1924-1927b.15, f.22Diary1855-1857b.15, f.23Autograph Book1879 | b. 13, f. 11 | Diary | 1912-1916 |
| b. 13, f. 14 Notebook 1914 b. 13, f. 15 Notebook 1914 b. 13, f. 15 Notebook 1914 b. 14, f. 16 Notebook 1914 b. 14, f. 16 Notebook 1924-1925 b. 14, f. 17 Diary 1924-1925 b. 14, f. 18 Notebook 1914 b. 14, f. 19 Notebook 1924 b. 14, f. 20 Notebook re: Genealogy circa 1925 b. 14, f. 20 Notes (loose-leaf) for classes, talks, etc. 1924-1927 b. 14, f. 21 Notes (loose-leaf) for classes, talks, etc. 1924-1927 b. 15, f. 22 Diary 1855-1857 Jennie W. Campbell Jennie W. Campbell Jennie W. Campbell | b. 13, f. 12 | Notebook/Diary | 1913 |
| b. 13, f. 15 Notebook 1914 b. 14, f. 16 Notebook 1914 b. 14, f. 17 Diary 1924-1925 b. 14, f. 18 Notebook 1914 b. 14, f. 18 Notebook 1914 b. 14, f. 19 Notebook 1914 b. 14, f. 19 Notebook re: Genealogy 1924 b. 14, f. 20 Notebook re: Genealogy circa 1925 b. 14, f. 21 Notes (loose-leaf) for classes, talks, etc. 1924-1927 b. 14, f. 21 Diary 1924-1927 b. 15, f. 22 Diary 1855-1857 b. 15, f. 23 Autograph Book 1879 | b. 13, f. 13 | Notebook | circa 1913-1914 |
| b.14, f. 16 Notebook 1914 b.14, f. 17 Diary 1924-1925 b.14, f. 18 Notebook Notebook 1914 b.14, f. 19 Notebook 1924 b.14, f. 20 Notebook re: Genealogy circa 1925 b.14, f. 20 Notes (loose-leaf) for classes, talks, etc. 1924-1927 b. 14, f. 21 Notes (loose-leaf) for classes, talks, etc. 1924-1927 b. 14, f. 22 Diary 1855-1857 Jennie W. Campbell 1855-1857 | b. 13 , f. 1 4 | Notebook | 1914 |
| b. 14, f. 17 Diary 1924-1925 b. 14, f. 18 Notebook 1914 b. 14, f. 19 Notebook 1924 b. 14, f. 20 Notebook re: Genealogy 1924 b. 14, f. 20 Notebook re: Genealogy circa 1925 b. 14, f. 20 Notes (loose-leaf) for classes, talks, etc. 1924-1927 b. 14, f. 21 Notes (loose-leaf) for classes, talks, etc. 1924-1927 b. 14, f. 22 Diary 1855-1857 b. 15, f. 22 Diary 1855-1857 b. 15, f. 23 Autograph Book 1879 | b. 13, f. 15 | Notebook | 1914 |
| b. 14, f. 18 Notebook 1914 b. 14, f. 19 Notebook 2014 b. 14, f. 20 Notebook 2014 b. 14, f. 20 Notes (loose-leaf) for classes, talks, etc. 2014 b. 14, f. 21 Notes (loose-leaf) for classes, talks, etc. 2014 b. 15, f. 22 Diary 1855-1857 Jennie W. Campbell 1855-1857 b. 15, f. 23 Autograph Book 1879 | b. 14, f. 16 | Notebook | 1914 |
| b. 14, f. 19 Notebook re: Genealogy circa 1925 b. 14, f. 20 Notebook re: Genealogy 201925 b. 14, f. 21 Notes (loose-leaf) for classes, talks, etc. 1924-1927 Thomas P. Campbell b. 15, f. 22 Diary 1855-1857 Jennie W. Campbell b. 15, f. 23 Autograph Book 1879 | b. 14, f. 17 | Diary | 1924-1925 |
| b. 14, f. 20 Notebook re: Genealogy circa 1925 b. 14, f. 21 Notes (loose-leaf) for classes, talks, etc. 1924-1927 Thomas P. Campbell b. 15, f. 22 Diary 1855-1857 Jennie W. Campbell b. 15, f. 23 Autograph Book 1879 | b. 14, f. 18 | Notebook | 1914 |
| b. 14, f. 21 Notes (loose-leaf) for classes, talks, etc. 1924-1927 Thomas P. Campbell b. 15, f. 22 Diary 1855-1857 Jennie W. Campbell b. 15, f. 23 Autograph Book 1879 | b. 14, f. 19 | Notebook | 1924 |
| Thomas P. Campbell b. 15, f. 22 Diary Jennie W. Campbell b. 15, f. 23 Autograph Book | b. 14, f. 20 | Notebook re: Genealogy | circa 1925 |
| b. 15, f. 22 Diary 1855-1857 Jennie W. Campbell b. 15, f. 23 Autograph Book 1879 | b. 14, f. 21 | Notes (loose-leaf) for classes, talks, etc. | 1924-1927 |
| Jennie W. Campbellb. 15, f. 23Autograph Book1879 | | Thomas P. Campbell | |
| b. 15, f. 23 Autograph Book 1879 | b. 15 , f. 22 | Diary | 1855-1857 |
| | | Jennie W. Campbell | |
| b. 15, f. 24 Autograph Book 1881 | b. 15 , f. 23 | Autograph Book | 1879 |
| | b. 15 , f. 24 | Autograph Book | 1881 |

Jennie W. Campbell (continued)

| b. 15, f. 25 | Diary | 1881-1882 |
|-----------------------------|---|-----------------|
| b. 15 , f. 26 | Birthday Book with Notes | 1887-circa 1920 |
| b. 16 , f. 27 | Book of Quotations | circa 1910 |
| b. 16, f. 28 | Guest Book | 1917-1935 |
| b. 16, f. 29 | Diary, with a few entries made by George Campbell | 1927-1930 |
| b. 16, f. 30 | Diary | 1928-1934 |
| b. 16, f. 31 | Diary | 1935-1939 |
| Lo | uise Campbell | |
| b. 17, f. 32 | Diary | 1895 |
| b. 17, f. 33 | Diary | 1902 |
| b. 17, f. 34 | Diary | 1909 |
| b. 17, f. 35 | Diary | 1913 |
| b. 17, f. 36 | Diary | 1914 |
| b. 17, f. 37 | Diary | 1915 |
| b. 18, f. 38 | Diary | 1916 |
| b. 18, f. 39 | Diary | 1917-1921 |
| b. 18, f. 40 | Diary, with two pressed leaves enclosed | 1922-1926 |
| b. 18, f. 41 | Diary | 1927-1931 |
| b. 18, f. 42 | Diary, typed excerpts re: family reunion of 1935 | 1932-1936 |
| b. 19 , f. 43 | Diary | 1937-1941 |
| b. 19 , f. 44 | Diary, typed excerpts | 1942-1946 |
| b. 19 , f. 45 | Diary | 1947-1951 |
| b. 19 , f. 46 | Diary | 1952 |
| b. 19 , f. 47 | Diary | 1953 |
| b. 19 , f. 48 | Diary | 1954 |
| b. 20, f. 49 | Diary | 1955 |
| b. 20, f. 50 | Diary | 1956 |
| b. 20, f. 51 | Diary | 1957-1961 |
| b. 20, f. 52 | Diary | 1962-1965 |
| b. 20, f. 53 | Diary | 1966-1968 |
| | | |

Louise Campbell (continued)

| b. 20, f. 54 | Record of her first year as a missionary | 1911 |
|--------------|---|------------------------------|
| b. 21, f. 55 | Notebook | 1942 |
| b. 21, f. 56 | Notebook (small) | 1943 |
| b. 21, f. 57 | Notebook | 1951 |
| b. 21, f. 58 | Notebook | 1957-1961 |
| b. 21, f. 59 | Notebook | 1957 |
| b. 21, f. 60 | Notebook | 1964 |
| b. 21, f. 61 | Notebook | 1965 |
| b. 21, f. 62 | Two Notebooks | undated |
| b. 22, f. 63 | Notebook Chinese | undated |
| | Written in Chinese | |
| | | |
| b. 22, f. 64 | Birthday Book | 1890 |
| b. 22, f. 65 | Account Book | 1947-1950 |
| b. 22, f. 66 | Sunday School Class Roll Book | 1949 |
| b. 22, f. 67 | Four Datebooks | 1954, 1965, 1966 |
| b. 22, f. 68 | Correspondence Record, including Medical Report | 1967-1968 |
| b. 22, f. 69 | Five miscellaneous Small Notebooks | 1958, 1966, 1967, undated |
| b. 22, f. 70 | "Chinese Medical Remedies- Notes by Anna Foster"cures practiced by the Hakkas | undated |
| Mar | garet Campbell Burket | |
| b. 22, f. 71 | Birthday Book | 1890-circa 1912 |
| b. 22, f. 72 | Diarytyped copy (20 pages) | 1904-1907 |
| Dore | othy Campbell | |
| b. 23, f. 73 | 1 page list of diaries and notebooks (incomplete) | undated |
| b. 23, f. 74 | Diary | 1908, 1912 |
| b. 23, f. 75 | Diary | 1914-1919 |
| b. 23, f. 76 | Diary/Notebook | 1920-1921 |
| b. 23, f. 77 | Diary/Notebook | 1921, 1928 |
| b. 23, f. 78 | Diary | 1926 |
| | | |

| b. 23, f. 79 | Diary | 1926-1931 |
|--|---|--|
| b. 23, f. 80 | Diary | 1929, 1932-1933, 1936 |
| b. 23, f. 81 | Notebook | 1930-1931 |
| b. 23, f. 82 | Diary | 1932 |
| b. 24, f. 83 | Diary | 1934 |
| b. 24, f. 84 | Diary | 1935-1941 |
| b. 24, f. 85 | Notebook | 1928, 1936-1938 |
| b. 24, f. 86 | Diary | 1938-1944 |
| b. 24, f. 87 | Notebook | 1939, 1943-1944 |
| b. 24, f. 88 | Diary/Notebook | 1939, 1941-1943 |
| b. 24, f. 89 | Notebook | circa 1940 |
| b. 24, f. 90 | Diary | 1942, 1944-1946, circa 1950 |
| b. 24, f. 91 | Diary/Notebook | 1943-1944 |
| b. 24, f. 92 | Diary | 1943-1944 |
| b. 25 , f. 93 | Diary/Notebook | 1943 |
| b. 25 , f. 94 | Notebook | 1944 |
| b. 25 , f. 95 | Notebook | 1944 |
| b. 25, f. 96 | Notebook | 1944 |
| b. 25 , f. 97 | Notebook | 1944 |
| b. 25, f. 98 | | |
| 0.20,1.70 | Diary | 1944 December-1945 January |
| b. 25, f. 99 | Diary Diary | December-1945 |
| | | December-1945 January 1945 March-1946 |
| b. 25, f. 99 | Diary | December-1945 January 1945 March-1946 September |
| b. 25, f. 99 b. 25, f. 100 | Diary Notebook | December-1945 January 1945 March-1946 September 1945 |
| b. 25, f. 99 b. 25, f. 100 b. 25, f. 101 | Diary Notebook Notebook | December-1945 January 1945 March-1946 September 1945 1942, 1945-1946 |
| b. 25, f. 99 b. 25, f. 100 b. 25, f. 101 b. 25, f. 102 | Diary Notebook Notebook Notebook | December-1945 January 1945 March-1946 September 1945 1942, 1945-1946 1945-1946, 1949 |
| b. 25, f. 99 b. 25, f. 100 b. 25, f. 101 b. 25, f. 102 b. 25, f. 103 | Diary Notebook Notebook Notebook | December-1945 January 1945 March-1946 September 1945 1942, 1945-1946 1945-1946, 1949 1945-1946 |

| b. 26, f. 106 | Diary | 1949-1952 |
|-----------------------------|----------------|-----------|
| b. 26, f. 107 | Diary/Notebook | 1948-1952 |
| b. 26, f. 108 | Diary/Notebook | 1951-1953 |
| b. 26, f. 109 | Diary/Notebook | 1951-1953 |
| b. 26, f. 110 | Diary/Notebook | 1953-1954 |
| b. 26, f. 111 | Diary | 1953-1954 |
| b. 26, f. 112 | Diary | 1954-1957 |
| b. 26, f. 113 | Diary | 1957 |
| b. 26, f. 114 | Diary | 1957-1960 |
| b. 26, f. 115 | Diary | 1960-1965 |
| b. 26, f. 116 | Diary/Notebook | 1966 |

Series III: Writings, 1880-1972

Material is filed chronologically according to generation, and according to classification. (e.g.--essays, term papers, etc.)

| | George Campbell | |
|---|---|---|
| b. 27, f. 1 | "Talk" delivered to Spokane, WA. Baptists; "The Whale or the Goat"2 page article | 1913, 1926 |
| | Jennie Campbell | |
| b. 27, f. 2 | Material re: Baptist missionary work among the Hakkas of China | 1932 |
| b. 27, f. 3 | "A man's best things lie nearest him" (2 pages) with pressed flowers, fragment | 1880, undated |
| b. 27, f. 4 | Autobiographical Material | 1933 |
| | Louise Campbell | |
| b. 27, f. 5 | Term papers re: China and India | 1926-1927 |
| | Miriam Campbell Joyce | |
| b. 27, f. 6 | "In Appreciation"essay | 1957 |
| | Thomas P. Campbell | |
| b. 27, f. 7 | "Story of his Travels. As found written in one of the note books of his father." (1 pagetyped) | undated |
| | Dorothy Campbell | |
| | | |
| b. 27, f. 8 | Autobiographical Sketches | 1946, circa 1960 |
| b. 27, f. 8 b. 27, f. 9 | | 1946, circa 1960 1945, 1946 |
| | Autobiographical Sketches "Japanese PrisonerA Play" (2 copies); letters from Woman's American | 1945, 1946 |
| b. 27, f. 9 | Autobiographical Sketches "Japanese PrisonerA Play" (2 copies); letters from Woman's American Baptist Foreign Mission Society and Columbia University "The Mess in Nursing"article; electrostatic copies of letters re: article from | 1945, 1946 |
| b. 27, f. 9 b. 27, f. 10 | Autobiographical Sketches "Japanese PrisonerA Play" (2 copies); letters from Woman's American Baptist Foreign Mission Society and Columbia University "The Mess in Nursing"article; electrostatic copies of letters re: article from Pearl S. Buck and "Woman's Home Companion" | 1945, 1946 1955, 1956 |
| b. 27, f. 9 b. 27, f. 10 b. 27, f. 11 | Autobiographical Sketches"Japanese PrisonerA Play" (2 copies); letters from Woman's American Baptist Foreign Mission Society and Columbia University"The Mess in Nursing"article; electrostatic copies of letters re: article from Pearl S. Buck and "Woman's Home Companion""Mental Health and Psychiatric Nursing"four graduate school papers | 1945, 1946 1955, 1956 1963, 1964 |
| b. 27, f. 9 b. 27, f. 10 b. 27, f. 11 b. 27, f. 12 | Autobiographical Sketches"Japanese PrisonerA Play" (2 copies); letters from Woman's American Baptist Foreign Mission Society and Columbia University"The Mess in Nursing"article; electrostatic copies of letters re: article from Pearl S. Buck and "Woman's Home Companion""Mental Health and Psychiatric Nursing"four graduate school papers"Psychology of Family Relations"three graduate school papers | 1945, 1946 1955, 1956 1963, 1964 1963, 1964 |
| b. 27, f. 9 b. 27, f. 10 b. 27, f. 11 b. 27, f. 12 b. 27, f. 13 | Autobiographical Sketches"Japanese PrisonerA Play" (2 copies); letters from Woman's American Baptist Foreign Mission Society and Columbia University"The Mess in Nursing"article; electrostatic copies of letters re: article from Pearl S. Buck and "Woman's Home Companion""Mental Health and Psychiatric Nursing"four graduate school papers "Psychology of Family Relations"three graduate school papersMaterial re: horoscope | 1945, 1946 1955, 1956 1963, 1964 1963, 1964 circa 1970 |
| b. 27, f. 9 b. 27, f. 10 b. 27, f. 11 b. 27, f. 12 b. 27, f. 13 b. 27, f. 14 | Autobiographical Sketches"Japanese PrisonerA Play" (2 copies); letters from Woman's American Baptist Foreign Mission Society and Columbia University"The Mess in Nursing"article; electrostatic copies of letters re: article from Pearl S. Buck and "Woman's Home Companion""Mental Health and Psychiatric Nursing"four graduate school papers"Psychology of Family Relations"three graduate school papersMaterial re: horoscopeMaterial re: lecture series by Dr. Ira Progoff | 1945, 1946 1955, 1956 1963, 1964 1963, 1964 circa 1970 1960 1945, 1969, |
| b. 27, f. 9 b. 27, f. 10 b. 27, f. 11 b. 27, f. 12 b. 27, f. 13 b. 27, f. 14 b. 27, f. 15 | Autobiographical Sketches"Japanese PrisonerA Play" (2 copies); letters from Woman's American Baptist Foreign Mission Society and Columbia University"The Mess in Nursing"article; electrostatic copies of letters re: article from Pearl S. Buck and "Woman's Home Companion""Mental Health and Psychiatric Nursing"four graduate school papers"Psychology of Family Relations"three graduate school papersMaterial re: horoscopeMaterial re: lecture series by Dr. Ira ProgoffAutobiographical Material | 1945, 1946 1955, 1956 1963, 1964 1963, 1964 circa 1970 1960 1945, 1969, undated |
| b. 27, f. 9 b. 27, f. 10 b. 27, f. 11 b. 27, f. 12 b. 27, f. 13 b. 27, f. 13 b. 27, f. 14 b. 27, f. 15 b. 27, f. 16 | Autobiographical Sketches"Japanese PrisonerA Play" (2 copies); letters from Woman's American Baptist Foreign Mission Society and Columbia University"The Mess in Nursing"article; electrostatic copies of letters re: article from Pearl S. Buck and "Woman's Home Companion""Mental Health and Psychiatric Nursing"four graduate school papers"Psychology of Family Relations"three graduate school papersMaterial re: horoscopeMaterial re: lecture series by Dr. Ira ProgoffAutobiographical MaterialAutobiographical Material | 1945, 1946 1955, 1956 1963, 1964 1963, 1964 circa 1970 1960 1945, 1969, undated undated |

| b. 27, f. 20 | Essays, travelogue, etc. | 1948-1951 |
|---------------------|---|-----------------|
| b. 27, f. 21 | Essays, travelogue, etc. | 1956-circa 1968 |
| b. 27, f. 22 | Manuscript of a three-act play | undated |
| b. 27, f. 23 | Essays | undated |
| b. 27, f. 24-26 | Miscellaneous | undated |
| | | |
| Dav | rid Campbell | |
| Dav b. 27, f. 27 | rid Campbell "Account of His Adventures" | 1927 |
| | | 1927 1951 |
| b. 27, f. 27 | "Account of His Adventures" | |

Series IV: Personal items and memorabilia, 1868-1972

Material is arranged chronologically according to generation. Biographical data appears first, followed by the material of individual members of the Campbell family. A photograph section is located at the end of the series. A separate box contains oversized printed material, primarily magazine and newspaper clippings.

| В | Biographical material |
|-----------------------------|--|
| b. 28, f. 1 | Genealogy of the descendants of George and Jennie Campbellprepared by David Campbell (2 copies) |
| b. 28, f. 2 | "Family Record"births and deaths (1 page) |
| b. 28, f. 3 | George and Jennie Campbell |
| b. 28, f. 4 | George Campbell |
| b. 28, f. 5 | Jennie W. Campbell"Comments About Mother by Her Three Youngest Children" |
| b. 28, f. 6 | Louise Campbell |
| b. 28, f. 7 | Louise Campbelltranscript of a tape about Kaying Girls School and other 1967 China tales (14 pages) |
| b. 28, f. 8 | Miriam C. Joyce, Paul W. Campbell, Thomas P. Campbell, and Kenneth M. Campbell |
| b. 28, f. 9 | Margaret C. Burket and Everett S. Burket |
| b. 28, f. 10-11 | Dorothy M. Campbell autobiographical sketches |
| b. 28, f. 12 | David M. Campbell |
| Т | Fhomas P. Campbell |
| b. 28, f. 13 | "History of the Delavan Baptist Church, Delavan, Illinois, From 1846 to 1906" (87 pages) |
| | Pages 44-47 are about Thomas P. Campbell. |
| b. 30, f. 38 | Memorial card, newspaper article |
| Ν | Aary Campbell |
| b. 28, f. 14 | Memorials with a covering letter from Mrs. H. A. McKeene of the Illinois Farmers' Institute |
| b. 29, f. 15 | Newspaper and Magazine Clippingsincluding letter about Mary Campbell written by her brother, George Campbell; Silhouette, Postcard |
| C | George Campbell |
| b. 29 , f. 16 | Genealogical Material"Record of Family Traits" forms from the Eugenics Record Office |
| b. 29, f. 17-20 | Genealogical Material |
| b. 29, f. 21 | Genealogical Material (printed) |

George Campbell (continued)

| b. 29, f. 22 | Material re: Milk Goat Industry |
|-----------------------------|--|
| b. 29, f. 23 | Account of 1915 illness, with letter from Dr. H. W. Newman to "Miss Campbell" |
| b. 29, f. 24 | Material re: his death |
| b. 29 , f. 26 | Miscellaneous printed material"The American Orientalist", V. II, No. 12 (1905), 1 Chinese language pamphlet |
| b. 29, f. 27 | Two pamphlets"Proceedings of the Second and Fourth Annual Session of the Palouse Baptist Spokane, W. T." (1883, 1885) |
| b. 29, f. 28 | Three pamphlets - "Origin and Migration of the Hakkas" by George Campbell (1912) |
| Jer | nnie Campbell |
| b. 29, f. 25 | Material re: her death, including a letter from the Toledo Council of Churches |
| Lo | uise Campbell |
| b. 29, f. 29 | Birth certificate (negative copy), fingerprints, medical material |
| b. 29, f. 30 | Floor Plans, Lists, etc. |
| b. 29, f. 31 | Two maps of China |
| b. 29, f. 32 | Newspaper and Magazine Clippings from Baptist and Chinese publications |
| b. 29, f. 33 | Newspaper and Magazine Clippings re: Louise Campbell |
| b. 29, f. 34 | Four pamphlets"Missionary Cameralogs", "Who's Who in the So. China Mission", "Then and Now", "Second Annual Report of the Hakka Work1906" |
| b. 29, f. 35 | Postcards, etc. of trip to South America |
| b. 29, f. 36 | Professional Material |
| Mi | riam Campbell Joyce |
| b. 30, f. 37 | Material re: family and residence |
| Ma | argaret C. Burket |
| b. 30, f. 39 | Memorial services of Margaret C. and Everett Burket, resume of Margaret C. Burket, etc. |
| b. 30, f. 40 | "Breeze in the Bamboos"printed poems by Dorothy Louise Burket (33 pages) |
| Ke | nneth Campbell |
| b. 30, f. 41 | Chronology of his house, movings, etc. |
| Do | rothy Campbell |
| b. 30, f. 42 | Brochures |
| b. 30, f. 43 | Extracts from Jung and Erich Fromm (typed) |

| b. 30, f. 44 | Invitation, Book Jacket, Lists, etc. | |
|-----------------------------|--|---------------------|
| b. 30, f. 45 | Material re: Bible Institute of Los Angeles, Clifton Springs Sanitarium and Clinic | |
| b. 30, f. 46 | Material re: nursingdiploma, graduation program and photo | |
| b. 30, f. 47 | Newspaper and Magazine Clippings | |
| b. 30, f. 48 | Newspaper and Magazine Clippings | |
| b. 30, f. 49 | Obituaries of former missionaries, material re: Dorothy Campbell | |
| b. 30, f. 50 | ScrapbookNew York vacation | 1947 |
| Dav | id Campbell | |
| b. 30, f. 51 | Floor plan, etc. | |
| Pho | tographs | |
| b. 30, f. 52 | Assortment of "Old Family Photos", including two tintypes | |
| b. 30 , f. 53 | Campbell Ancestorsincluding Thomas P. Campbell | |
| b. 30, f. 54 | George Campbell and Jennie Wortman prior to their marriage, school and family scenes | |
| b. 30, f. 55 | Family Portrait | 1902 |
| b. 30, f. 56 | Mary Campbell (1 photo, 1 tintype); State School for Girls, Grand Mound, WA girls gardening, sewing, etc. (14 photos) | |
| b. 30, f. 57 | Photographs and Identification Lists: China Inland Mission School, Chefoo, North Chinagroup photos including Thornton Wilder (from Kenneth Campbell) | |
| b. 30, f. 58 | Scrapbook: Postcards of China | |
| Ove | ersize materials | |
| b. OVd7 | "Our Missionary Helper" - letter from George Campbell, page 1; Letter from Jennie Campbell, page 2 | 1908 February |
| | "Desert Weed Provides Wax" - newspaper article | 1925 |
| | Louise Campbell's Bachelor of Arts degree from Occidental College | 1927 |
| | Hong Kong Telegraph - article re: Haiching Incident | 1929 December 9 |
| | Los Angeles Times - article re: Haiching Incident | 1929 December 10 |
| | Seattle newspaper - article re: Haiching Incident | 1929 |
| | "Young People" - article by Louise Campbell | 1932 |
| | Newspaper article re: Dorothy Campbell and Miriam Campbell Joyce | undated |

Selected Search Terms

The following terms have been used to index the description of this collection in the Library's online catalog. They are grouped by name of person or organization, by subject or location, and by occupation and listed alphabetically therein.

Subjects

Educators Missionaries Missions Missions -- China Nurses World War, 1939-1945

Names

Burket, Margaret Larue Campbell, 1896-1973 Campbell, David Miles, 1901-1972 Campbell, Dorothy McBride, 1898-1972 Campbell, George, 1858-Campbell, Jennie Wortman, 1863-1939 Campbell, Louise, 1883-1968

Families

Campbell family

Corporate Body

Kwong Yit Girls' School